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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the “Company”)(the “Directors”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the

year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Business of the Group in 2015

In 2015, the Group achieved the targets set at the beginning of
the year and doubled the profits. The outstanding performance
mainly came from our three key products, including the “Bank-
Business Express”, capital and risk control products, and
banking outsourcing service products (merchant), and was
complemented by the “Bank-Hospital Express” and “Bank-

School Express”.

As the structural reform of the financial market in China, the
People’s Bank of China tightened the capital requirements
for commercial banks, and a standardized management
approached was adopted for online and offline merchants
and markets, creating new opportunities for our offerings.
Meanwhile, our industry-leading R&D efforts and investment
generated a positive return that surpassed our expectation,
contributing to a continual growth in our overall performance
in the last two years. The implementation of policies targeting
the internet and related industries, and banking risk control
products further highlighted the value of consolidating the
online and offline markets of the core “Bank-Business Express”.
Our capital and risk control products also gained greater
recognition by banks and financial institutions.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHE

The Group entered into a strategic partnership agreement
with ICBC Zhejiang branch, one of the flagship branches in
China’s banking network, in relation to the Offline to Online
(020) business platform that serves merchants and cardholders
in mid-2015. The platform extended its reach to other
branches across the province upon completion of the pilot
run. Leveraging our sensitivity to 020 market as well as our
flexibility and understanding of the banking sector, the Group
deepened the partnerships with various banks, manifesting the
long-term value of the banking outsourcing service products
(merchant). The new market trend will encourage merchants
to adopt intelligent technologies and offer new opportunities
to our products, especially the business platform serving the
merchants.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The banking outsourcing service products, business platform
evolved from traditional operations and “Bank-School Express”
remain our main sources of big data. With the help of these
products, the Group will consolidate the big data and the
online and offline businesses to form a unique 020 model.
We also plan to extend the collaborative model of the business
platform with ICBC Zhejiang branch to other commercial banks.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their support and to all
employees for their loyalty and dedication. In addition, | would
also like to extend heartfelt appreciation to our customers,
partners, suppliers and bankers for their trust and support.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

21 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENW R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

December 2015 (“the financial
year”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB55,819,000, an increase of 14% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2014: approximately
RMB48,908,000).

For the year ended 31

B %5 0 R

AEBTEEFEARKNE ([HE])EEH
BELHEERTAENGES B RRE -

AEEMNEXBERE:

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=Z+—HLEFE(Z
WEE]) AEEHGHEHERAHNARE
55,819,0007C - WA F R HE N&14% (= F
— PO - 4 AR #48,908,0007T ) °

Revenue

2015 2014

—EB-4fF —E-MF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR FTT AR TF T

Sales of software products SHE S E 8,494 8,525

Sales of related hardware products $H S A ARE (M E m 4,321 5,557
Provision of software-related technical T2 A (AR B Rl

support services SRR 43,004 34,826

55,819 48,908

The increase in the turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to the increase of 23% in the revenue of the
Group’'s provision of software-related technical support
services when compared to the same period of last year. Cost
of sales for the year ended 31 December 2015 increased
to approximately RMB29,223,000 (2014: approximately
RMB27,392,000). The Group’s gross profit ratio increasing to
48% (2014: 44%) was mainly due to our effective cost control
measures in the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015
is increased by 9% to approximately RMB12,707,000 (2014:
approximately RMB11,657,000). For the distribution and selling
expenses, it is increased by 25% to RMB8&,564,000 (2014:
approximately RMB6,831,000). The increase in administrative
expenses and distribution and selling expenses were mainly due
to equity-settled share-based payment recognized during the
year. Other administrative expenses and distribution and selling
expenses do not have significant change due to our effective
cost control measures. Other income included refund of value
added tax, government grants subsidy related to products and
interest income; and other gains and losses included exchange
differences and fair value changes in investment fund.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB1,028,000, not much movement when
compared to the same period of last year. (2014: approximately
RMB957,000).

The Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB1,294,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a
substantial improvement of the results of the Group as
compared to the profit of approximately RMB571,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Increase in revenue is the main
factors leading to the profit increased.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
recorded equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
RMB3,302,000 (2014: RMB592,000). The equity-settled
share-based payment for the year ended 31 December 2015
was allocated between the cost of sales, distribution and
selling expenses and administrative expenses amounting to
RMB617,000, RMB525,000 and RMB2,160,000 respectively.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control measures. With the products of our
Group becoming more mature in the market and the effective
cost control, we expect that financial results of the group
would be further improved in the coming year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWNE DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's loans from a shareholder
of approximately RMB43,164,000, which bear interest at 3.3%
—3.5% per annum (2014: RMB37,068,000, which bear interest
rate of 3.3% —3.5% per annum).

In addition, the Group has a new bank borrowing from a bank
in the PRC with a principal amount of RMB3,000,000, which is
unsecured, interest bearing at 4.02% per month.

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year (2014:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB18,901,000. (2014:
approximately RMB12,217,000)

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2015 was approximately 108%
(2014: 126%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, our employee exercised 3,250,000 share
options granted on Jan 2010. Our director and employee
exercised 4,000,000 and 16,450,000 share options respectively
granted on June 2013. As at 31 December 2015, the total
number of issued ordinary shares of the Company was
864,430,000 shares (2014: 840,730,000 shares).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

On 15 April 2015, the Group de-registered a sino-foreign
equity joint ventures established in the PRC, Singlee Zhuhai.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmR DM

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types
of risk within the organisation and the external environment
with active management participation and effective internal
control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its
shareholders.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed
on note 6 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 270 employees
(2014: 261 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB25,496,000 (2014:
RMB21,817,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENW R DM

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The
Group adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing.
It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting
using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance. The Group
is also using office equipment carrying Energy Label issued by
the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department which save
energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group’'s
businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle
and Reuse and enhance environmental sustainability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENW N DM

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus the group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the Year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the group and its business partners

or bank enterprises.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not

known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices, like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENW R DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

The Group's assets and liabilities were denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and United States dollar, in
view of the potential HKD and USD exchange rate fluctuation
the Group undertake foreign exchange rate risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
when the need arises.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, the Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when
appropriate, through variety of means.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from fluctuation in market prices of
the Group’s investment in financial assets. The investment
portfolio is frequently reviewed and monitored by our senior
management to ensure prompt action taken and the loss
arising from the changes in the market values is capped within
an acceptable range.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due because of an inability
to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows and maintains an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability
to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows.

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

IREBRTHAREE (&)
HNE RIS

HRAKRENEERABERAARE BTEE
TTAHE EREBETRETEXRREFEAEHE
AEYEINE R - N E B AT B EASNE
B AT EEEEERINERR LB
ZREPERNINE R

R E

HRMEHRAUERRRE AEENBEE
ELMAENXEAR YEERBEERFEBSRT
BRAMER A DT S E I i A o

B 1B /2 B

RERRBRITAARENESREERENTSHE
RELEIMELE -GREEBSRERIT KL
EEREMES  UHERERSRRTE  FAN
EESmMEENERENAIEIBEA-

REE SRR

RBELEARINEAKEHNRERFTEEE
CREREE EEREDHARRERL DAL
H-ERRDECRARE AEBEERRERN
B YHFARZEE KRS EEYKF - AR
FReERAEELERTESREERSREN
¥ E-

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERAE

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmR DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard
operating procedures, limits of authority and reporting
framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the
Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions, performance of property markets in regions where
our investments locate, the performance of the fund managers
for our invested funds, which would not be mitigated even with
careful and prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENW R DN

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS FEGHNA=
Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on B mEL2EFFEREE2THTH-
this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE T RFENTBEBRE
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-IF —Z-pNE “E-=F% “Z-CF —Z——F
+=ZA=+-8 +zZA=t-8 +ZR=t-B +ZA=+-8B +ZA=t+-H
LEE t5E tFE ILFE tFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue HEKA 55,819 48,908 33,364 36,080 18,840
Profit (Loss) attributable to fRREWL R (B1])
shareholders 1,294 571 (18,203) (11,334) (37,483)
Total assets BEBE 56,131 42,004 29,730 44,736 90,135
Total liabilities BEAE (60,711) (53,574) (42,471) (44,002) (79,839)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfR)/BEZRE (4,580) (11,570) (12,741) 734 10,296
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESEREREERBCERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 71, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 30 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 20 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group’s macro-
strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 62, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Hung Ying, aged 46, a Director of our Group, had been
the deputy general manager of Hangzhou Singlee Technology
Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd of the Group
from April 2007 to April 2011. Prior to joining the Group, he
had worked as the marketing director and general manager in
Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology Company Limited
from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung graduated in
information, social and management sciences (majoring in
business administration) from University of Paisley and obtained
an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has several years
of experiences in management, and is specialized in market
planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
the chairman and executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEECREBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in
December 2003. He had been actively serving on government
policy and executive bodies, including those relating to town
planning, urban renewal, public housing and environment
matters for 24 years. He has been appointed as a Justice of
the Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban
councilor. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human
Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of
the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982
and one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World
in 1983. Mr. Pao is a Hon. Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Housing. He is an independent non-executive director of
Oriental Press Group Limited, Capital Environmental Holdings
Limited, Zhu Zhou CSR Times Electric Co. Ltd., DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Soundwill Holdings
Limited, Maoye International Holdings Limited, HL Technology
Group Limited and JC Group Holdings Limited, all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He resigned as independent
non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings
Company Limited on 2 November 2015.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 68, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm. He is also an independent
non-executive director of HL Technology Group Limited.

Mr. Lo, King Man, Jp sBs, B8s, aged 78, an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in
academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive
bodies of numerous educational and cultural organizations. He
was appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holding Int'l Ltd. in September 2004.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREERBCERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang Loong Cheong (“Mr. Chang”) is the Chief
Consultant of the Group. Mr. Chang has extensive experience
in formulating strategies, identifying and capturing solid
investment opportunities with focus on planning and
developing solutions for complex issues. He has been involved
in numerous substantial negotiations; and had led many project
teams to successfully execute on opportunities and expand
into new territories. Mr. Chang has previously served as a
director of, and held senior positions in, several renowned
enterprises including companies listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), New York Stock
Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Chang acts in
a senior advisory capacity to certain listed companies in the
telecommunications infrastructure and power industries. He
also holds directorships in several private companies in equities
investment, property investment, hotel management and new
energy sectors.

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 36, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree in Finance from University of
Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2007, he has accumulated over
several years of accounting, auditing and financing experience.
He is now responsible for accounting, financing and company
secretarial duties.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

REEE

it

REEASLLE ([KEL])RAEENEFER -
REENGIERE VERLEETREHSE
AR BER BEMH AR L RS MR BIRT
ENEEALERR -RESEZESEUH
RBHEARLIAR BRI B E A
BE-RALEECEIRERBEHRERS
PRERAR ([HBRPT])  HMOEHFIHAEE
BEAXZAMETORBEANE THAEEE
MEFTETSABBE - REEENEMER
RBENTENET LT RARNAERER S M7
FoWANRERE MERE BEEENH
RERRBENZRIARBEEEETRS -

EEHLE 365 NEBOPHRBERA T
ME-BEAEFARANEELIMARIHER
ERMBETEU - RARBEFFLARETHAE
BRXGBELBAEGMASEMEFEM-EE
ERRERFFAUELRGRBEBAFAUELRGE
AREE - BEER_TZTLFANAMALREE
ZH BEREBZEE FRABRELR R
BEAKENET BMENRATAWEETT(E-

Annual Report 2015 —E—HFFf



Report of the Directors

EEWEE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to the
profit from operation by principal activities and geographical
area of operations for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 54.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion & Analysis” on
pages 5 to 6 and pages 7 to 15 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

ESHESE

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2016 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 11 May
2016. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
2016 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 9 May 2016 to Tuesday, 10 May 2016,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at 2016 AGM, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company should ensure that all the share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 pm on Friday, 6 May 2016.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 15
of the annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 56 and page 136
respectively.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEWREE

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options
scheme are set out in note 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2015, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company. (2014: Nil)

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2015 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
24% (2014: 33%)
40% (2014: 82%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales
27% (2014: 25%)
60% (2014: 55%)

— the largest customer’
— five largest customers combined’

Note 1: The basis of classifying customer has been changed. All branches of a
bank has been classified as a customer.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers stated above.
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Report of the Directors

ESHESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2015, shareholders (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group or substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

FERRREMALTRREG  HERSD
REREIEZERRKXR

RARBEMESTHTRARMAAN R-_F—5
FT-A=+t—"B UTABREFFLHPERK
IS XVER 2 K F 3R KRB M AR R W E
RARBBRMDKAABRDOEROBRR (KR
AEERITRAHKIN KERKBEFAH
HRABBR TR AKEEAEMKE QR
RAG LREZEMBRHIBRAEEZ5%KIA
b HREES LB GIEBGATFENE
00 AT RS &%

(=) A2FABREEIOIBTZEBER

Number of shares held

BEERGHAE

Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

RREE 5% EER HE BE HERTEIH

Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
En#EEA (note 1)
(HEtr)

Great Song Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
En#EEA (notes 1 and 2)
(BaF1k2)

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 S 33.30%
RERmELL FERED (notes 2 and 4)
(BiiF2kk4)

Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%

EnBEAA

Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
THBE LT FERED (notes 2 and 3)
(Ba2k3)

Mdm lu Pun Family interest 368,880,000 - 42.67%
ket RBRER (note 5)
(H1its)
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Report of the Directors

EEWREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

FTERRRHEMALTRERND - HERH
REER 2B RKXE (&)

(b) Share options (Z) Bl
Number of

Capacity/ Number of underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held shares
R & B9, REZER BFREzBRERR HER DB
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 65,000,000 65,000,000
RRRMIE R A4 EntEsn
Notes: Wit -
1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated 1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited 2 — & 7 £ & B2 20 B

in the British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms.
Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one
third of the voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei
Ling is deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same
287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power
of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares
held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited
as mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed
to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
is deemed to be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung
Lai is deemed or taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.
She is also deemed to be interested in the 65,000,000 share options
and the 16,025,000 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai
as mentioned in Note 4 above for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EFMRZZEREEAR ARMEBELER
Great Song Enterprises Limited A 48 [F] f% 7 ££ [A]
#A  ffiGreat Song Enterprises LimitedBll g2
ERZT2EHRE -

2. ZHLBAS B Goldcorp Industrial Limited# 5 °

3. ZFHE L+ 4|Great Song Enterprises Limited
MEERBB=52— MiEEFHAGoldcorp
Industrial Limited®) R E#EBB =92 —°
ERBHFRBEGRA THERZLTHRE
i A Goldcorp Industrial Limitedfr i A &
287,855,000% A% 17 &Y 4 B # &5 ©

4. REBME A Goldcorp Industrial Limited 8945
ERBB=S2 — ENEHFRBAEGKRD AR
& 9% 4 3% A8 1E % B Goldcorp Industrial LimitedFft
#i 5 #9287,855,000% A% 1) 9 18 A 4 2 o

5. % %) @A Goldcorp Industrial Limited® =
A REXMF4RTH RRREEERR
{E¥% % Goldcorp Industrial Limitedff# & &9
287,855,000/% A% 17 &9 48 Rl 4 45 Wkl 2 L 7R A&
BMEEENE T BEZFHFRAEKH  BHE
ERRERE AL EEIRAEBZSZRMHY
RSP AR o 2 b XM EARTI - IRIBEH &
HERD - BITREEER RS EEWE IR
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R ER -
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Report of the Directors

ESHES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EEREETHAERRKRND - HE KD
REREIEZERRKXR

RZB—RAF+=A=+—HB ARARESERIT
BAAHENAARKHEMEMEREZE (EER
BHERBEEOEXVIE (BBEEGIE71E) )
ARG, - BB D R EEE R B ERIRE
BHREEGOIEXVEETRESH BAME AR
REI BRI ZEEIAR (REREREE
HREEERAINZEBRXEREREEERER D
BHBEE) RIRIEFF KB KRAIE3521%
BELTRARAEGFNE LML ERBAIZER
ETRBIZES.48F5.671KBEME AN T KR
FitEmREANT

KRR RS :

all

Number of shares held

BEROEE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
RERER B3, Rz ER Ha HRE FERtTESH
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 = 33.30%
RERLIS ST A& EE R (note 1)
(HteE1)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%
EREBA
Mr. Hung Ying Beneficial owner 8,040,000 - 0.93%
Rk HE EREBA
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Report of the Directors

EEWEE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EERFTETHRAERRND - HERS
REERBRRKR (&)

HBCEE R

Number of ordinary
shares held in Goldcorp

Industrial Limited

(note 2)
M Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEBERYE
(Hiat2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng B3 EmER R BrR FAERFBESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 1 - 50%
RERLIE EREBEA
Notes: Wit

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2015 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BREXFEEEN RZE—RF+_A=+—
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XVER) Z BRI tn - HHEAR D K EREE T A EMR
RIBEF RAEROIEXVEBE7RED FAM
EARRAEMRAZEDZIORE (BRERIEE
HEHEGRIBEBGRXREREERERES
ZREBIIRR) » HEHEN AR RIRERE 5 L
EHROIE3RAFEZELM I ERIKR
FARIRAIF IR L AR BIF5.48E FE5.67 (R A H
EARRAI MBI ZRBEIIXR °

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERAE

25



26

Report of the Directors

ESHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted
under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new share
option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme"”), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are same with
the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28
February 2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was
refreshed so that the Company was authorized to grant share
options under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a
total of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
SGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.
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Report of the Directors

EEWREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.
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Report of the Directors

ESHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share
to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were
at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to its
employees of the Company and the specific mandate to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion
of the foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held
on 28 February 2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per
share to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately
before the day on which options were granted.

On 15 May 2015, the Company granted 21,400,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share
to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.43 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.
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Report of the Directors

EEWEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

BRETE (&

BRECHEFBOT

)

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as at granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2015
Ho2-1% R-2-1%
-fA-f tZA=t-H
AT AR Brefik BREIE LRES AT
ESpidEclREREE  EH BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR kE%E
Continuous contract 9 April 2008 to 18,850,000 - - - (1,090,000) 17,760,000
employees (other than 8 October 2017
directors)
REANEE (EZR)) —ZENEBANEE
ZE-tETANA
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
BRR ZE-FELATNRE
ZZ-ZE-A1N\A
Tam Kwok Hing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
HEE ZE-FELATNAE
ZRCRE-ATI\R
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
EEX ZELATNER
“FCEE-RTAR
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
k2 ZE-SELATNRE
“ECRE-ATNR
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to 8,670,000 - (3,250,000) - (1,340,000) 4,080,000
employees (other than 18 January 2020
directors)
REANES (B3R  —E2-EELATABRE
“ECRE-ATNR
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000
15 August 2020
it ZR--FCATARE

ZRCRENATER
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Report of the Directors

ESHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BRESE (&)
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as at granted during ~ exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2015
R=%-1% R-%-1f
-A-H tZB=1+-A
AR Bk Brefik BrgmE BRE&H AR
EENGRANESRE M BRE%E ERE%E BRE%E BREYE ERE%A RiE%A
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to 1,430,000 - - - - 1,430,000
employees (other than 15 August 2020
directors)
RERNES (EE3R) Z2-—-F-At5EE
“ECZENATERA
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
fRRE “F—F-A-tN\RE
“RZ-£-ANA
Continuous contract 28 February 2011 to 13,270,000 - - S (300,000) 12,970,000
employees (other than 12 January 2021
directors)
FRANEE (SR  ZF-—5A-T)\BZ
ZB-§-A+ZH
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 to 4,040,000 - (4,000,000) - - 40,000
23 June 2023
e ZE-=5RAZTRAZE
ZRIZERAZTEA
Continuous contract 24 June 2013 0 25,850,000 - (16,450,000) - (1,200,000 8,200,000
employees (other than 23 June 2023
directors)
HARANEE(EERN) -5/ B-TRRZ
ZRCZERAZTEA
Hung Ying 15 May 2015 to - 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000
14 May 2025
4 ZE-1FRATRAE
ZECRERATRA
Continuous contract 15 May 2015 to - 19,500,000 - - - 19,500,000
employees (other than 14 May 2025
directors)
REANES (3R —2-LFRATIAE
ZECRERATRA
142,960,000 21,400,000 (23,700,000) - (3,930,000) 136,730,000
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Report of the Directors

EEWEE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interest and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures” below and the
share option scheme disclosures in note 26 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company or a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2015 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during year ended 31
December 2015.
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Report of the Directors

ESHES

3

i

VAN
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ARABZEEERERFBIRAFTERES
I5EFS0REZEERAREN -

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 35 to
page 50 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT BEHRABERE
BEARAARRARGERENENRRESH
M BEEANEIREBHRRRAERFEIER
FHRAREZARIFRE -

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS =)

BH-Z—hF - A BERAREEHHEART

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January

32

2015 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

5=

BITES
fRRME (£

Cui Jian BB

Hung Ying AR
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Pao Ping Wing MR ES

Tam Kwok Hing HE

Lo King Man ERX

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
Hung Yung Lai and Mr. Tam Kwok Hing will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and
Mr. Lo King Man and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEWEE

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 18
of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the connected transactions are exempted
from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.
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ESHES

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate
cover for legal actions brought against the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

AL M N/
e BRBESE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

Saved as disclosed below, the Company complied with the code
provisions in Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report which set out in Appendix 15
in the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2015. The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure its continuous compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2015 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises:
Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai
Cui Jian

Hung Ying
Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing
Directors Tam Kwok Hing
Lo King Man

The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for the period.
Although the Group had net liabilities as at 31 December
2015, the Board obtain financial support confirmation from
its shareholder and director — Mr. Hung Yung Lai that remove
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the
going concern approach in preparing the financial statements.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
providing with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring
that all Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman
on governance matters. All directors have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company secretary keeps minutes of all meetings which are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Directors. The Company Secretary also plays an
essential role in the relationship between the Company and its
shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its
obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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TEEARES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by
the Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group's
business, the Board considered that the directors have a
balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities
incurred by them in discharging their duties. The increase
coverage for the Directors is reviewed on an annual basis.
Throughout the year, no claim had been made against the
Directors and the officers of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is
subject to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM
upon retirement. The articles of association of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting and (ii) as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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TEEARES

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

(Cont’d)

EERIRXE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors R-Z—AF+-_A=-+—HEFE EF2H

participated in the following trainings: LAT 553 -
Type of
Trainings
I B
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERLAS ST A4 A, B
FZ
Mr. Cui lian EREL A, B
Bz
Mr. Hung Ying R L A, B
Bz
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing R R S A B
Bz
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEE LA A, B
Bz
Mr. Lo King Man Es XA A, B
FZ

A: Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties
B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 2 : [EEBELE  —MAKRESHES2HRE - TR

business or directors’ duties etc.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam
Fai, no replacement of the post of the chief executive officer
has been fixed as at 31 December 2015. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure from time to time. If candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified,
the Company will make appointment to fill the post of chief
executive officer as appropriate.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit and risk management Committees, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the GEM's website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.
cn. All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting

meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in above.
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e BRBESE

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November
2005. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing,
and other members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Tam Kwok
Hing and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration committee which have been revised effective
on 26 March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed the

remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and consider that are fair and reasonable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
other members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing
and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the
nomination committee which have been made effective on 26
March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set out in
the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’'s corporate strategy;
identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of an succession planning for directors; assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors;
formulate and review the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
policy.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company'’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee was established in
August 2001. The chairman of the audit and risk management
committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and other members include
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and Mr. Lo King Man, all of them are
independent non-executive directors. The written terms of
reference of the audit and risk management committee which
have been revised effective on 21 March 2016 to comply with
the new requirement set out in the revised code provision are
posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website.
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TEEARES

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit and risk management
committee are mainly to review the financial information
and reporting process,
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with

internal control procedures and

external auditors and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules in that at least one of the members of the Audit and risk
management Committee (which must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an Independent-non
executive director) is an independent non-executive director
who possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting related financial management expertise.

The Audit and risk management Committee held five meetings
during the year, so that full attention can be given to the
matters submitted. The Group’s unaudited quarterly results
for the 3 months ended 31 March 2015, 9 months ended 30
September 2015 and interim results for the 6 months ended
30 June 2015 as well as audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the audit and
risk management committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure have been made.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY BEEERESZTILBER

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments ARG —HEBTZ LB FR RBRNRIRKEES
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is &/ WA TR ESeEBERSE &
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in ERki&RTE TAZAIEE:

terms of nationality, professional background and experience,

as shown in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors A ESAG
Executive Directors HITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFEHITES

@ Executive Directors

WITES

® Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BIUEITES
B Nationality B EHE%£E
Hong Kong, China FEEE 5
China + 1

@ Hong Kong, China
FEIEE

China
R

*  Nationality is based on passport, and does not necessarily reflect ethnic origin. * BEERIRERER]R YT ERMEE-
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TEERREE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd) EEEREZ TR (&)
C Professional background C HEES
Business Im 2
Computer and information technology B R BB 1
Human settlements planning and development AEEEREHREBRE 1
Accounting & Auditing 2 RER 1
Education and cultural development HE R ER 1
@ Business
FEIES

@ Computer and information technology

B R BHCE

@ Human settlements planning
and development

AFEEBRRREER
® Accounting and Auditing

ot R

Education and cultural development

HERXCER

D Age D ik

45-54 1
55-64 1
65-74 3
75-84 1

@ 45-54

® 55-64

® 65-74

75-84
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd)

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of
our shareholders, to have a Board which

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions;
and

¢) has sustainable development as its core value,

and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders,
particularly the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly
and effectively.

For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such
as professional experiences, business perspectives, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity and length of service. The achievement of these
objectives is measurable on an objective review by shareholders
of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of
background and experience of individual directors and the
effectiveness of the Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether
the Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a
gradual move to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed
which they support, we shall continue to provide sufficient
information to shareholders about the size, qualifications,
characteristics etc. of each individual Board member and
therefore, the Board as a whole.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd)

The Nomination Committee has been charged with the
review of the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The
Nomination Committee believes that the approach of review of
the Policy may take the form of an analysis of the Board in the
different aspects of diversity as set out above having regard to
the sustainable development of the Company, supplemented
with shareholders’ feedback on the diversity of the Board and
its overall effectiveness in promoting shareholders’ interests.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
Audit and risk management committee meetings, Remuneration
Committee meetings and Nomination Committee meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the
following table:

EEEMESTUILBE (&)

REZEQERBEEHRNESEXNEZ T
X ZEESRERSNITE A ARRARN
ARERR PTEFEELARITENST
iR ABZERRHEFENSTLUR
ZTE e ER R MR BEERUARENE
B

SR HELE

REFERBE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIF
EHRFEFEeR ERLEAREEZBEE
#ZFHEEEeH REZBEEENMERK
GZREHEN TR

Audit and risk
management Nomination ~ Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERR

B3 RRER R%Z8E FHzEEE

Directors B3 g3 £Egg EE ] EE

Number of meetings held ERETRY 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ eRLERE/
Number of meetings held SEBIRY

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Hung Yung Lai REEEE 5/5 = 11 171

Mr. Cui Jian EREAE 5/5 - - -

Mr. Hung Ying RELE 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES

Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRREE 5/5 5/5 11 171

Mr. Tam Kwok Hing KEAELE 5/5 5/5 171 171

Mr. Lo King Man ERXEHE 55 5/5 17 171
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted approximately HK$560,000 (2014
HK523,000). No other significant fee was incurred for non-
audit services during the year (2014: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and its subsidiaries, in accordance
with accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. Management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls, while
the Board of Directors and its Audit and risk management
Committee oversee the actions of management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls that have been put in place.
The Company convened meetings periodically to discuss
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Directors are of the view that the
key areas of the Group's internal control system are reasonably
implemented with rooms for improvement. The Group will use
its endeavor to implement changes in order to further improve
the Group's internal control system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in
printed form and are available on the GEM website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.
com.cn;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company'’s
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there is no

significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one —tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such
requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "“Group”) set
out on pages 54 to 136, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD IR

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB4,580,000 as at 31 December 2015. This
condition, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+-HA=1—HIFFZF

2015 2014
—E-1EF —E—OFE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
ok AR¥Fr AR For
Revenue HEWA 6 55,819 48,908
Cost of sales 85 65 B AR (29,223) (27,392)
Gross profit E R 26,596 21,516
Other income Hfth U A 867 1,213
Other gains and losses H b Wz & E 1 7 (2,188) (613)
Distribution and selling expenses DI MIEEE R (8,564) (6,831)
Administrative expenses EEBA (12,707) (11,657)
Impairment loss recognised JEWE 5 AR X
on trade receivables, net BEEE FE (501) (1,004)
Finance costs mEBA 8 (1,028) (957)
Profit before tax B B4 A % F 2,475 1,667
Income tax expense FTisfiFE X 9 (1,181) (1,096)
Profit and total comprehensive  ANFEHEFIR
income for the year EZHRALE 10 1,294 571
Earnings per share BRWE
— basic (RMB cents) —ERN(ANRE5) 13 0.15 0.07
— diluted (RMB cents) — BB (ANR%S) 13 0.15 0.06
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R IR R &

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AHFE+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Jioka AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEIE - KER&H 14 8,292 8,713
Intangible assets EAE 15 2,168 522
10,460 9,235
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 507 410
Trade and other receivables R E 5 & H A AR K 17 25,573 19,445
Loan receivable JEURE 5k 18 - -
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 19 690 697
Bank balances and cash RITHGBNIRS® 20 18,901 12,217
45,671 32,769
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H M BR K 21 10,290 12,106
Amounts due to directors B EE A 22 902 775
Amount due to a shareholder JE A< A% B3R A 23 11 11
Tax payable FE T B I8 908 736
Borrowings BE 24 10,179 7,017
22,290 20,645
Net Current Assets REBEETHE 23,381 12,124
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERB A A E 33,841 21,359
Non-current Liability FERBEME
Borrowings BE 24 38,421 32,929
Net Liabilities EEFE (4,580) (11,570)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 25 8,551 8,360
Reserves 1 (13,131) (19,930)
Deficit on Shareholders’ Equity  BRR#E X B4t (4,580) (11,570)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 136 were &
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on A

21 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:
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HUNG YUNG LAI
DIRECTOR
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WHTIMATRERES:

CUl JIAN
DIRECTOR
ER
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

Share
Share Share Statutory Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve losses Total
& RBEE EERE EXfE ERERE 2 EE CH
RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
E¥Fr  AEEFT  ARETR E¥Fr  AEEFT  ARETL  ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hida) (Hi2b)
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A—H 8,352 155,143 3,613 5217 30,102 (215,168) (12,741)
Profit and total comprehensive  AEERFIRZERA
income for the year &3 - - - - - 571 571
Exercise of share options REEAF ERE 8 Y] S = @2) = 8
Lapse of share options Kﬁf%xﬂﬁgﬁx% - - - = (328) 328 =
Recognition of equity-settled  BRRELE ARG B
share-based payments ERFH - - - - 592 - 592
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME
+-A=t-H 8,360 155,185 3,613 5217 30,324 (214,269) (11,570)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFERF RZERA
income for the year @8 - - - - - 1,294 1,294
Exercise of share options REEAR L ERE 191 3423 - - (1,220) S 2,39
Lapse of share options Mr%i&ﬂ%w - - = (453) 453
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRH B
share-based payments AWM - - - - 3,302 - 3,302
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+-A=t+-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 5217 31,953 (212,522) (4,580)
Notes: st
(@) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda ("Companies Act”), share (a) REBERE—AN—FEQEE(TREDE])  BPHE

premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by
their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The
enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC
subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv—_ﬁ /| Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi '%E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-EE — M
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Profit before tax B B A s A 2,475 1,667
Adjustments for: PR
Finance costs BmEER 1,028 957
Interest income MEWBA (11) (20)
Exchange loss FE 5 8 2k 2,087 -
Depreciation of property, TEE -BERRHBTE
plant and equipment 1,060 1,111
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 32 92
Loss on disposal of property, HETBE  BEMEEEIE
plant and equipment - 27
Impairment loss recognised on FEWE 5 BRFOREE R
trade receivables 1,962 1,419
Recovery of trade receivables JEWE 5 R FURE & B
previously impaired (1,461) (415)
Reversal of impairment loss BREmRITFEREEE
recognised on inventories - (62)
Equity-settled share-based REGEEARN AERNRAX
payment expenses 3,302 592
Loss arising on change in HIEEBEREZANEE
fair value on financial assets E18
classified as held for trading 49 88
Operating cash flows before EEEXBHACKERER
movements in working capital 10,523 5,456
Increase in trade and FEW B 5 I H 4t AR 5R3G AN
other receivables (6,629) (10,825)
(Decrease) increase in trade and BB 5 R EAMBRFR OB 4 ) &0
other payables (1,816) 3,145
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (%) mEd (97) 111
Cash from (used in) operations  REFE (A RE 1,981 (2,113)
Income tax paid ENFFH (1.010) (704)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZBME (A Z
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEHEEE 971 (2,817)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+-A=1+—HIFFZF

2015 2014
—E-RF —MF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFor
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Increase in intangible assets & B (1,678) =
Purchase of property, BETIE WEMEE
plant and equipment (639) (6,864)
Increase in held for BIEEB R AL N
trading investments - (16)
Interest received 24 B 11 20
Proceeds from disposal of HETBE BKEK&B
property, plant and equipment Fr 18308 - 44
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBFFACHEESFH
ACTIVITIES (2,306) (6,816)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from bank borrowing RITIEE S NIA 6,000 3,100
Proceeds from borrowings HEEHRIE 5,366 7,423
Proceeds from exercise of T EREMGHIE
share options 2,394 8
Advance from a director BEERMHEZBXK 357 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITEE (3.442) (222)
Repayment of borrowings BEBE (1,398) (2,607)
Interest paid ETH B (1,028) (957)
Repayment to advance from 1%3?%%2 B
a director (230) (128)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METBHFESRESFR
ACTIVITIES 8,019 6,617
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERAEEEYZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  #1in (4 ) B8 6,684 (3,016)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHZHEE2RELZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,217 15,233
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBEER
AT END OF THE YEAR, ReZEEY
represented by bank balances BRITHEBRRIR®
and cash 18,901 12,217
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE
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GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report. Its immediate holding company is Goldcorp
Industrial Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin lIslands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, who is also the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products and
provision of software-related technical support services.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
30.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Group’s total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by approximately RMB4,580,000
as at 31 December 2015. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's financial and liquidity position, and
taken into consideration the following factors:

e ongoing financial support from a director, who is also
the substantial shareholder of the Company, for a
period of twelve months from the date of approving
the consolidated financial statements by the directors;

e  cost control measures; and

e  possible additional external funding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. RELGAMBEHRER 2 EE (£F)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into RATRESHAE KEBRLAEER A&
account the above factors, the Group will be able to meet B 458 58 N FA AT B8 SR AE B 7% R HE B BRI
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due BEZEFIE At S BHRETIER
for the foreseeable future, and accordingly, have prepared RECEEERR -

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern

basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI REETRERIMBRSE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Application of new and revised IFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") for the first time in
the current year.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
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Employee Contributions ZABRT A it
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to B B B 75 i 5 22 R BEMBHELEL
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 A HEN —T-ZTEE_F
Cycle —ZFEBRCEE
Bigid
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to B % B 7% 5 22 R BEMBmELR
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 ZEFTR —E2-——F7F_%
Cycle ——ERRERE
B

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("IFRSs") (Cont’d)

Application of new and revised IFRSs (Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle and
2011 - 2013 Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRSs included
in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
and 2011 - 2013 Cycle for the first time in the current
year. One of the annual improvements requires entities
to disclose judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
Operating Segments. The Group has aggregated several
operating segments into a single operating segment based
on the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph 12 of
IFRS 8 and made the required disclosure in note 6 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the amendments. The application of the other
amendments has had no impact on the disclosure or
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Lease’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses”

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial instrument

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013
to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple
debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debts instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial instrument (Cont’d)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under IFRS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit of loss is presented in profit
or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
IFRS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial instrument (Cont’d)

e the new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in IFRS 39. Under
IFRS9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
guantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's
risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of IFRS 9 in the future may not have a significant impact
on the amounts recognised in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments to IAS
1 will have a material impact on the amounts recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation
method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to IAS 38 /ntangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+-HA=1—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Cont’d)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to IAS 16 and IAS
38 may not have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 16 Lease

IFRS 16 — Leases was issued by IASB in January 2016.
It will be effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. This new standard provides
a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees. As the Group does
not engage in any lease arrangements as a lessor, it will be
impacted by the new standard due to its role as a lessee.

The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

P& PR3 aT B 42 5T B B Bt 75
EER ([BFR T H|EZER])
(%)

& 28 B fef R 4 Rz 37 5T R AR S 5T BB A
BHEER (&)

B2 1 R E 167 R BB € 71 E R %38
RZBTFEETEZHITERBH T %
(&)

BRETRARREMEERAR-_T—X
F-A—BHZEMABZFEHE-

NEEERHEABEE S ERF165 K
BIfR @5 R B3R 2 A F BRI KIS Y
AEEGAVBRERAERZSHERE

S/ 488
REE-

B BHEERE165HE

BERMEREENEI6R -—HEHEERS
STERABEER T —RE-—ARM H
BR_E-hF-A-BHZ2BHARNF
AR A R o xR AR R R AR B & R B R
KB AR HAE A RAE AR B8R ey R 12
RET —ERA BRI AR AR E XL EIF
SEBRAREEMEELH  EEEE
REBANAEBXBFERNTE -

AZERRMHT —EE-—WABEASHE
-ERAEARRAEHENEERE
& RIFASHIRAB12EAKLAT - SEH
BEBERE-

.

Annual Report 2015 —E—HFFf



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 16 Lease (Cont’d)

A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement of lease arrangement.
Right-of-use asset includes the amount of initial
measurement of lease liability, any lease payment made
to the lessor at or before the lease commencement date,
estimated cost to be incurred by the lessee for dismantling
or removing the underlying assets from and restoring
the site, as well as any other initial direct cost incurred
by the lessee. Lease liability represents the present value
of the lease payments. Subsequently, depreciation and
impairment expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will
be charged to profit or loss following the requirements of
IAS 16 —Property, Plant and Equipment, while lease liability
will be increased by the interest accrual, which will be
charged to profit or loss, and deducted by lease payments.

As set out in note 27, total operating lease commitment
of the Group in respect of rental premises as at 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB652,000, the directors
do not expect the adoption of IFRS 16 as compared with
the current accounting policy would result in significant
impact on the Group's result but it is expected that certain
portion of these lease commitments will be required to
be recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Other than set out above, the directors do not anticipate
that the application of other new and revised IFRSs will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and to streamline with IFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented and
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to
be disclosed under the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance or Listing Rules but not under new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4. SITHE (&)
Basis of consolidation mEEXE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate REEUBWMREERNR A RBAREEE
the financial statements of the Company and entities fl B MBSk - BSIEHIER AR
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the NI

Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. SEHHEK (&)
Revenue recognition HEWRARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and titles are passed at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Service income for provision of software-related technical
support is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excluding items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments, other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, loan receivable and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and loan receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period of 120 — 180 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
For loan receivable, impairment of the asset is assessed
individually by reference to the credit quality of individual

party.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHE (£&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SRIA (&)
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEZE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) PREEMRE (&)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and loan receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue cost.
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BERBARIN MEEREEZREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to directors, amount due to a
shareholder and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of share options granted would be
expensed fully at one time, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4.

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability
and determines impairment of trade receivables and
loan receivable in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4. Such estimation is based on the
credit history of its customers and the current market
conditions. Management reviews the debtor settlement
status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
allowance for doubtful debts accordingly. If the customer'’s
financial position were to deteriorate, actual impairment
loss or write off would be higher than estimated. As
at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is RMB21,650,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB8,933,000 (2014: carrying amount
of RMB16,331,000, net of allowance of doubtful debts of
RMB8,432,000).

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amount of intangible assets
is RMB2,168,000 (2014: RMB522,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDIBER

AEBHCLEDHHIRBETRAENNE S

S R FTIR M RIS AR - AR BB ITE
B (NBELEREN) ERABETERD
RERSTESBRAEZER THERSE
B E DR FTIR IR -

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
different types of products sold and service provided.
Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance is also focused on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

Segment revenues and results PHBEEBRARES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBREERZHOIMBEI D HE KA K
results by operating and reportable segment: XEZ2OWMWET :
Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REHH
HEBRK HEMH V]
Em BHEM X ERH ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETHT AREFT AREFZT
2015 —E-5%
External sales and total revenue HMAE REHERA
- segment revenue —DEHEKA 8,494 4,321 43,004 55,819
SEGMENT RESULTS P WER 935 476 4,737 6,148
Unallocated other income KAOBEMBA 867
Unallocated other gains and losses AOBEEMKEREE (2,188)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEERX (1,324)
Finance costs BREER (1,028)
Profit before tax BB AT A
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

6. HEWARDHMER (&)

DEHERAREE (&)

Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REREHG
HETMH HERRA 18 B Bl
Em EHEm TEREB CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARETT AREFTT ARETFT
2014 —Z-mE
External sales and total revenue HMEE RBHERA
~ segment revenue - HHHEERA 8,525 5,557 34,826 48,908
SEGMENT RESULTS DHMEE 541 352 2,207 3,100
Unallocated other income AOREMBA 1,213
Unallocated other gains and losses AOEEMNEREE (613)
Unallocated corporate expenses APOBEEERY (1,076)
Finance costs REER (957)
Profit before tax BREL AT R A

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies as described in
note 4. Segment results represents the profit from each
segment without allocation of directors’ remuneration,
finance costs, unallocated other expenses and other gains
and losses. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. No segment
information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

1,667

LED B @R BUR BRI AR 2 AN &
EestBEMER 2B E N EELED R
EEH BMEER ROMKEMASAR
HitWm LBETE DB 2&ER BIEM
RMEBRREAZBERZEE EOEE
BEFGERERE ANEERBEDH
BRI IR BR A 48 2 BRI A E R E ) BT
BEREFMGERABENER AitYE2
HALFEFR -

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFF#H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A

N

= B 5 W AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hith 5 WEH
Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
Ritwy
HEHRH HENRE L2k
Em BHER X ERH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETFT AREFTT AREFT ARETFT
2015 —B-EF
Amounts included in the measure of BERFENIEEL
segment results: HIE:
Depreciation of property, THE BELRENE
plant and equipment 162 82 816 1,060
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 5 2 25 32
Impairment loss recognised EWE SRS EE
on trade receivables 299 151 1,512 1,962
Recovery of trade receivables JENE 5 AR R B #
previously impaired (222) (113) (1,126) (1,461)
Share-based payment expenses DR AEBRNFRAX
(excluding directors) (TREES) 451 230 2,284 2,965
2014 g Spgufa2
Amounts included in the measure of BERFENHEEL
segment results: A
Depreciation of property, THE BERRENE
plant and equipment 194 126 791 1,111
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEZH 16 11 65 92
Impairment loss recognised on trade U E F BT EE
receivables 248 161 1,010 1,419
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE BRER&H
plant and equipment B 5 3 19 27
Recovery of trade receivables JEYE 5 AR SR B R
previously impaired (73) (47) (295) (415)
Share-based payment expenses MR AEBRNHAX
(excluding directors) (TREEE) 89 58 365 512
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+=-A=1+—HIFFZF

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDEER (&)
(Cont’d)
Revenue from major products and services: RETEEMRBRHZHERA:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFor
Software products BH4Em
POS-MIS V2.0 POS-MIS V2.0 7,832 7,619
Sing Lee payment management A RERZH1.0
system 1.0 662 906
8,494 8,525
Hardware products B Em
Hisense cashdrawer 1 W AR 1,330 =
Server AR % 25 885 179
Network Control Device MR REME 825 824
Automatic Pay Machine B B4 B i 571 1,285
SP30 SP30 396 398
Automatic Terminal Machine BE)akom — g - 1,800
MIS system front-end equipment MIS R #i Bl & 32 - 191
Computer ESH - 20
Others Hity 314 860
4,321 5,557
Provision of software-related RESHEBEI
technical support services T ERE
Development 2% 12,178 10,400
Maintenance & 30,826 24,426
43,004 34,826
55,819 48,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SHEWARDEER (&)

(Cont’d)

Geographical information

AR AN RE S 2 A AR E
B E S -

The Group's revenue from external customers is all
generated from customers located in the PRC.

AEBEMAHRDEEREEMAELE D

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC

by location of assets. BRLAFREIREA -
Information about major customers FEEFEHR

AL E KA ERIE P < 88 B R il s i&
RIEHERATREBEHEE10%MT:

Revenue from customers from provision of software-
related technical support services of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of the total sales of the
Group are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-EF —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREFT

Customer A EPH 14,897 12,244
Customer B BFEZ 6,775 7,285
Customer C ZEFA 5,938 N/A!
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! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

EEPZHE WA BB AR N A 3

revenue of the Group. 10% °
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HthmREE
2015 2014
—E—FEF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TFT AREFr
Loss arising on change BIEEBEREZANE
in fair value on financial assets EEE
classified as held for trading 49 88
Exchange loss M 5 &8 2,139 525
2,188 613
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

8. FINANCE COSTS

8. MEEH

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFor
Interest on bank borrowing wholly ARAFANZEEEZ
repayable within five years RITEEZFE 306 94
Interest on loans from a director not BARAFRNEZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years EEERZAE 722 863
1,028 957
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIBHAX
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARETFr
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PRI EMEM
(IEmBR])
— Current year —KFE 951 1,076
— Underprovision in prior years - BAEFEBRETR 230 20
1,181 1,096

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, PRC, with statutory tax rate of
25%. Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and New
Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality
and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration
of Taxation and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential
tax rate from PRC EIT for three years starting from 2013.
Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software”), Singlee Software
(Zhuhai) Company Limited (“Singlee Zhuhai”), Beijing
Singlee Yin Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Singlee”) and Xin Yintong Technology Co., Ltd.
("Xin YinTong”) is 25% for the years ended 31 December

2015 and 2014.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

Frigsim < (&)

BEFBRCEMEHRE HE-T—AF
M_E-—ME+-_A=Z+—BHILFE N
MERFEEBR AR ([FAE]) 57
B (HRB)BERAA (TFHAKE]) -4t
REARBEESRMBER LA (TR
MDD RFEBEEEGR AR ([FRA])
LR E[H25% o

HRAEERBE T —AF R _F—Q
Ft- A=t HALFEYERBBEL
st AR BUs M) BRI B BB FISTAE
B -

AEEHEXHEGE R MEMEEE
R < BRI A A 2 $IERAT

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Profit before tax B %56 A 4 A 2,475 1,667
Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate A ZEMESMIHTEI15%
at 15% (2014: 15%) (Note) —E—MF:15%)
AEZBESXE (FiE) 371 250
Tax effect of income not taxable TR RBHA Z
for tax purpose MR e (780) (599)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2
for tax purpose MR 560 356
Effect of different tax rates of EEERNETRCEE
group entities (795) (350)
Underprovision of tax in prior years AEFERERETE 230 20
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMAEREE 2
difference not recognised DTk 12 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBEEZ
MG E 1,583 1,419
Tax charge for the year AEEBIBELZ L 1,181 1,096
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

i

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Note. Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2014: 15%) represents the
relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the
Company which generates majority of the Group's assessable profit.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB74,659,000 (2014:
RMB76,491,000) available for offset against future profits
and deductible temporary differences of RMB294,000
(2014: RMB213,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the unused tax losses and the
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses and the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

The unused tax losses will expire in the following years:

Frigsim (&)

et BRMGHBEIS% (ZF—MF:15% ) FEX
RAIMBR R AR Z MRS HRBEE - 22
AIRASEELE RIS BRTEF -

RBEBR AEBNASAHBEBELY
ABARYT74,659,0007T (ZF—NF: AR
#76,491,0007T ) - A] FAVEH 85 R 20 7 &
AR R EENARK294,000T (=ZF
— PO AR%213,0007T) MR EEAHETE
ERBRA G AEEEABR RS
BRAMBEREZEE WAEBEITARE
BARBRHBEERINAERFEEER
ELERIBEE -

ARREFZIABDABRBBEZBHOT

2015 2014

L —T-F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR FT ARETFT

2015 - 8,686
2016 20,509 20,509
2017 14,908 14,908
2018 17,517 17,517
2019 14,871 14,871
2020 6,854 -
Total unused tax losses FEABSEE 74,659 76,491

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. RFEE & F
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging and REE MR R (FFA) THEIE

(crediting) the following items:

2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT

Salaries, wages and other staff benefits ~ #4 - TEREME TEF 21,124 20,222
Retirement benefits schemes contribution iE K48 T 5t & 3% 1,070 1,003
Equity-settled share-based payment & B 45 B LARR 19 &

expenses ERARHAXZ 3,302 592
Total staff costs (Note) BITRAEE (Hi) 25,496 21,817
Depreciation of property, THE BEREETE

plant and equipment 1,060 1,111
Amortisation of intangible assets M EESN 32 92
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R B 2 478 478
Operating lease rentals BE@HEREMN

in respect of rented premises LEAERS 2,172 2,723
Impairment loss recognised [EWE 5 ERFOREE R

on trade receivables 1,962 1,419
Recovery of trade receivables FEWE 5 R FURE & B

previously impaired (1,461) (415)
Reversal of impairment loss BEC®RTERE

recognised on inventories B8 (G AEERA)

(included in cost of sales) - (62)
Cost of inventories recognised WRAEMRIZZ

as an expense FERKA 2,945 3,237
Loss on disposal of property, HETBE BEMR&HB

plant and equipment &5 18 - 27
Interest income MEWA (11) (20)
Government grants BT 478 B

— subsidy related to products —EmfEih - (120)

— value-added tax refunds —IBERERB (833) (998)
Note: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. Hit: BEEMEDHALME TKAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS M. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors R PR A A _E AR Bl 2 RGP BR
by the Group in connection with the management of the REEENSENZEESAZH 20
affairs of the Group, disclosed pursuant to the applicable S

Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2015
“Z-1%
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RELE
RIKER DA 40 2 B
e e HE L5 BEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR AREFT ARBTT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RREBLE - 78 4 - 82
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 331 4 - 335
Mr. Hung Ying i St - 333 3 337 673
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing MR KL 78 - - - 78
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEBEE 78 - - - 78
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 78 - - - 78
234 742 1 337 1,324
2014
—T-MmE
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
REEE
R AR A E T
e Fe ATEIHR DB st
RMB 00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai gLt - 76 4 = 80
Mr. Cui Jian ERLE - 407 4 - 411
Mr. Hung Ying Ay s - 274 2 80 356
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR L E 76 - - - 76
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 76 - - - 76
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 76 - - - 76
228 757 10 80 1,075
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

11.

12.

Annual Report 2015 —E— R F$§

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the management of the Company is in the process of re-
appointment of the Chief Executive of the Company and
therefore, there is no emolument for the Chief Executive
to be disclosed.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2014: two) executive directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining four
individuals (2014: three) were as follows:

11.

12.

EEMNE (F)

HE-_EZ—RE+-_A=+—HIFE"
ARBEEBEIEENRITARAITHRE
B MU BT RAER 2B Al
W FE o

BEZZT—AR-ZFT—NF+=A=1+—
BLEFE ASEETERATWES I
B ¢F 2 W% 5| B 0 A AN 55 B 31 00 A AN SR [
ZHRMKEAREREBRB 2 ME -BIEE
EMESIREREHE-_T—AR=Z
—MNE+ A=+ —BILtFEE Z T

EEMWE

AEEREARSHFALEE R (ZF
—NF WA ARARRITES HFHE
FPALXBENERB - B TORAL (=
T-MF:ZR)ZHFEMET:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR FTT AR For

Salaries and other benefits FehHEMEF 1,389 1,012
Contribution to retirement RURAEFET &) 5Kk

benefits schemes 176 122
Equity-settled share-based IREEEARGD R

payment expenses e 983 178

2,548 1,312

Their emoluments were individually within the
HK$1,000,000 band.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

B H @RI 2 B& 7 F171,000,000/8 7T 2 &
B A -

BE-_Z—AFEK=-T-—WFE+ZA
=+ BLFE A5XEHERRERS
AT EAFHMIERRSI EMAKRE
B 5 i A AN 5 BB 2 SR B ok tE A B AR R B
B2 RmfE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

13. BRR W&

ARBEBANEESRERN R FRETY
BN BUERRT &

2015 2014
—ZE-EF —E-mOF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFor
Profit for the year attributable KAGIER ARETE
to owners of the Company ST ETINE: - T
for the purposes of basic and FEIEF ARG
diluted earnings per share 1,294 571
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZE-mF
‘000 ‘000
Fie F
Number of shares BRHEA
Weighted average number of ordinary FREsTE SR AR K E
shares for the purposes of basic and Wea 2 & i A
diluted earnings per share hniEF 9 81 852,677 839,982
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BOEBT T m AR R I
shares — Share options Ep-Ak 21,274 42,860
873,951 882,842

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the

HE_ZT—AFER_ZFT—WNF+=A8

years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 does not
assume the exercise of 2007 Option, 2010 August Option,
2011 February Option and 2015 May Option (as defined in
note 26) because the exercise prices of those options were
higher than the average market prices for shares from the
dates of grant.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

=t BLEE SREBREILIRAF
E_TTLFEERE —T-FTF/\AB
BT —F_ABEREER-FT T
FHABKRE (W26 ) ARE X
THHELHENTERERENTISFH
B1% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

14.

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. TBE BERRKRE

Computer and

Leasehold related Motor
Building  Improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE EER
¥ MEEE HERE X &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT ANREFT ANREFT
cosT [B%:N
At 1 January 2014 RZE—-NF—A—H - 3,123 7,513 1,585 12,221
Additions #m 6,238 419 182 25 6,864
Disposals BHE - - (497) (444) (941)
At 31 December 2014  A-Z-ME+-A=1+—H 6,238 3,542 7,198 1,166 18,144
Additions #m 241 31 164 203 639
At 31 December 2015 RZT—-RF+-A=1+—H 6,479 3,573 7,362 1,369 18,783
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—-NF—A—H - 2,710 5,676 804 9,190
Provided for the year ~ AF#E{E 122 332 562 95 1,111
Eliminated on disposals £ % %8 - - (443) (427) (870)
At 31 December 2014  AZT—NFE+-A=+—H 122 3,042 5,795 472 9,431
Provided for the year A {E 289 90 549 132 1,060
At 31 December 2015 A-Z—RE+-A=1+—H 411 3,132 6,344 604 10,491
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 R=-Z-F&+=-A=1+-H 6,068 441 1,018 765 8,292
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—HmF+=-A=+—H 6,116 500 1,403 694 8,713

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value ranging from 5% to 10%, using straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Building Over 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term

of lease or 5 years
Computer and related equipment 20% - 30%
Motor vehicles 10% — 20%

TERBERTDHE BEMRERBEZ
BRI A BN A B ARVRIR T 51 S R
HEMRAN  WEAREMGHARBER (NF
5%%Z10% ) :

BF
MEMEKE

i

B

K AR 2 4

204

MEFHHSF
(ABEERE)

20%%30%
10%%£20%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

57

The building is situated on leasehold land in the PRC and
held under medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not obtained the
building ownership certificate for its building with carrying
amount of RMB5,840,000 (2014: RMB6,116,000). The
directors of the Company expect the building ownership
certificate will be obtained in 2016.

14.

THE BELSKE (&)

ZRFURPEAM B RS-

BHE-_ZT-—AF+-_A=1+—8 &&
BaRESEFrERERETENE
T E A& A R#5,840,000 (ZZF — Q4 :
6,116,000) - XA REZE  FEEEE
NEBE-_T— R FES-

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Development
costs
HEEH
RMB’000
AR For
COST B
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF—-—H—H-
—E—mWF+=-A=+—H 13,503
Additions 12 10 1,678
At 31 December 2015 R—ZE—RF+=-_A=+—H 15,181
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B R REE
At 1 January 2014 RZE—WF—HA—H 12,889
Amortisation for the year IF B 92
At 31 December 2014 R-EBE—NFE+_-_A=+—H 12,981
Amortisation for the year IR 32
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—RAF+_-_A=+—H 13,013
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H 2,168
At 31 December 2014 R-E—WNE+-_A=+—H 522

The additions represents an online platform developed
internally in promoting business of its business partners.
The development costs have finite useful lives of 10 years,
which are amortised on a straight-line basis.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

NEEAMAEZ@ LG RIRFAHEZE
Bt 2 R85 - MBRAZEE E B FH
BI0F  IREREEH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

16.

17.
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INVENTORIES 16. FE
2015 2014
—E—FREF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ANREFT ARMEF T
Finished goods B an 507 410
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ERE 5 & HABRA

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB 000

AREFT ANREFor

Trade receivables JEUE FER 3K 30,583 24,763

Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (8,933) (8,432)
21,650 16,331

Other receivables H b fE U BR 30 3,923 3,114
25,573 19,445

Other receivables mainly include advance to staff for daily
operation, rental and utility deposits and others.

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 — 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customer’s request. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group conducts investigation or research on
the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer.

HMEEERETERRETHAREEZR
R HERAAEXRZS REM-

BTEPZEEH KRN F1208180KT
F o AN SR B AT IR R BB L AP R A B R
EER BEPERLERESH - EEMRIE
A#EFH AREEAEXMEHER
ZEERFBBEEFP 2 EEERMETE
EPZIERBEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. EIWE S REMRR (&)

AT T3S AREWE SRR (HREE
BINBERABRE D 2RI D

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

2015 2014

—E-EHF —E—NmF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFoT

0 - 120 days 0E 120K 18,041 14,928
121 — 180 days 121E180K 493 593
181 - 360 days 181E360% 3,116 810
21,650 16,331

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB3,116,000 (2014: RMB810,000) which have been past
due as at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment losses. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

BRERAEEERKEZRERRNAEGFERER
E#HARE3, 116,000 (ZZF—MF: A
K #810,0007T) < FEWBR 51 - A 5 BA R
EEE - AN S B SR EEERE K
EEWEN LRERFEAAERR -

EEMERREZEBEE 5 EK Rk D

impaired: Mo
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT AREFT
Overdue: gl
Less than 1 year Nk 3,116 810

The remaining trade receivables which are neither past
due nor impaired mainly comprise the receivables due
from state-owned and local commercial banks with good
reputation.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 17. EREZ REMBRIR (£)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REBESY
2015 2014
—EB-4fF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREFT
1 January —H—H 8,432 7,428
Impairment losses recognised E R EWKIE
on receivables FEEE 1,962 1,419
Impairment losses reversed R EREEE (1,461) (415)
31 December +=ZA=+—8 8,933 8,432
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are REBEBIEDERIREEKE SRR
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate WAFE A AR8,933,0000T (— T — P4 :
balance of approximately RMB8,933,000 (2014: AR 18,432,0007T) + B BES A LRE
RMB8,432,000) of which the debtors were in financial B 2 o
difficulties.
Certain of the Group's trade and other receivables of REEETRERKE S REMBERHARE
approximately RMB52,000 (2014: RMB49,000) were 52,0007T (=& — M4 : AR #49,0007T)
denominated in United States dollar (“US$"), foreign iR ASEE TR 2 INEETTHE

currencies of respective group entities.

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE 18. BURE K

2015 2014

—E-HEF —E—OFE

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AREFr

Fixed-rate loan receivable EWTE BB 2,040 2,040

Less: allowance on loan receivable B R E SRR R (2,040) (2,040)
The loan receivable represents a loan granted to Achieve FEWE Z I T B L% = 75 Achieve Best
Best Investments Limited (“Achieve Best”), an independent Investments Limited (“Achieve Best”")Z &
third party, which is unsecured and carries interest at 2% FBBERYEEA IR FEF E2%E

per annum. Jshe
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

19.

The loan was originally due on 30 November 2010 and
the Company extended the repayment date of the loan to
30 November 2011 after evaluated the potential business
development with the independent third party and
assessed its credit quality by the directors. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the repayment date of the loan
was further extended to 30 November 2012. In view of
the fact that the loan advance had been outstanding over
a year, no settlement was received during the year 2011
and the past incidents of extending the loan repayment
date, impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,040,000) was recognised in 2012 after considering
the probable future cash flows.

18. EIWER (#Z)

ZEFRIINR=ZE—ZEF+—A=1+HE
H mMEBSEFEEBYE=HEIEZEE
BRENRBEHEEEREZ AQA#
ERvERSEE —E——F+—HA=+
B-RBE_F-——F+-_A=+—~H
EFE BERZERBHE—TEE-F
——F+—A=tRH-AEERMNKEE
MWEEEBAE—F MARZE—FNR
WEKITEMNERER RBAERER
BREBRzE0 EERIAERRES
MIAE - R T — ZF B #322,500,0007%
7T (R A R#2,040,0007T ) B EEE -

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 19. FIEEBERE
2015 2014
—E—-5F —ET—OF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ABRHEF T
Investments in unlisted fund FETEESRE 690 697

The investments in the fund are denominated in US$, of
which 14% (2014: 23%) of the fund’s investments are
listed securities and liquid assets and the remaining 86%
(2014: 77%) is an unlisted security. The fair value of the
investments in the unlisted fund is estimated based on
the fund's net asset value, representing mainly the quoted
prices of the fund'’s listed investments.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

ZESCREDNUETGE ESKREY
EF14% (ZFE—HF:23%) B LETESFR
MBEE #$H186% (ZFE—UF:77%)
WA —BFLMELF - FLTESKREZ
AhERESCZEESFE NZEFRE
2 LR EZREERBURMMGE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to
0.35%) per annum during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB20,000 and RMB1,179,000 (2014:
RMB2,000 and RMB334,000) were denominated in US$
and Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), respectively.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. BITHEBRRES

REBZRITEBMRSBEFRLRE
THISTFERERNKOIERVISE(ZT
— P :0.01EZ035F )t B2 R174
éﬁo

REBABHHAREE20,0007T M4 AR
1,179,0007T ( == —M4F : AR¥2,0007C
2B A ZE T HIE & A R #334,0007T A
THE) 2 ETRITEHRRS TIEHAE
EEEBZIINEETRABTTEE

21. BHE S K EMERK

2015 2014

—E-HF —E-mF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARM T AR TF T

Trade payables ERTE SR 4,078 5,178
Deposits received from customers BElEFIZS 358 261
Payroll payables JE {1 B T % B 1,541 1,414
Other payables and accruals H b fE S BRI 4,313 5,253
10,290 12,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

il

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of
trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

21. BNESRHEMERR (£)

ATHmERRENEZERAEEAN

Bl 2RI DT

2015 2014

—E-1F —E—OE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ARETFT

Within 90 days 90K A 1,965 2,887
91 - 180 days 91E180K 509 345
181 — 365 days 1812365K 847 1,134
366 — 730 days 366=730K 100 189
Over 731 days 731 KA E 657 623
4,078 5,178

Certain of the Group’s trade and other payables of
approximately RMB651,000 and RMB70,000 (2014:
RMB613,000 and RMB57,000) were denominated in US$
and HK$, respectively.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

REBETEMNE S REMEBERHARE
651,0007T & A R#70,0007TC (= Z — Y
F: AR¥613,000 T AETHIERAREE
57,0007 ABTTAE) DRl HEER &

BZINEXTTRETTIIE

22. BRNESNE

2015 2014

—E-FF —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREFT

Amounts due to directors T ES IR 902 775

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+-HA=1+—HILFE

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

24.

23. B RERFIE

2015 2014
—E-1EF —E—OE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT AREFT
Amount due to a shareholder, JfE {~F — & P B Goldcorp
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Industrial Limited &) 18 1 11

The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

s
ZREE-

ZAREABTTAHE  RERR 2R RAR

BORROWINGS 24. B &
2015 2014
—E-IF —ET-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AR For
Loans from a director (Note i) EXER (K 43,164 37,068
Bank borrowing (Note i) RITE (K atii) 5,436 2,878
48,600 39,946
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEAZUTHNEE:
2015 2014
—E-IF —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AR For
Within one year —F K 13,010 7,017
Between one and two years —EMWE 6,217 2,093
Between two and five years e RF 10,653 11,703
More than five years tBidhF 18,720 19,133
48,600 39,946
Less: Amount due within one year shown J&l:ZBR—FRNEEZ S5
under current liabilities (FlBREAEaE) (10,179) (7,017)
Amount due after one year BR—FRERzZ®R 38,421 32,929
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z—

24. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

These loans represent unsecured loans from a director, Mr. Hung
Yung Lai,
over the Company. As at 31 December 2015,
aggregate carrying amount of (i) approximately HK$31,346,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB26,653,000) (2014: approximately
HK$32,236,000, equivalent to approximately RMB26,066,000)
carried fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and repayable in equal
monthly installments to July 2031; (ii) approximately HK$2,143,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,822,000) (2014: approximately
HK$2,117,000, equivalent to approximately RMB1,712,000)
carried fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and repayable in equal

who is also a shareholder with significant influence
loans with the

monthly installments to December 2032; and (iii) approximately
HK$3,765,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,201,000)
(2014: approximately HK$4,242,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB3,430,000) is interest-free and repayable on demand; (iv)
approximately HK$5,083,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,322,000) (2014: approximately HK$5,021,000, equivalent
to approximately RMB4,060,000) is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable within 3 years from 2014, and (v) approximately
HK$2,117,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,800,000)
(2014: approximately HK$2,226,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB1,800,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% per annum
and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group borrowed
(i) new loans of approximately HK$4,133,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,514,000) from the director which are
unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% per annum and repayable
within 3 years; and (ii) new loans of approximately HK$2,178,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,852,000) from the director which

are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 3 years.

The Group has withdrawn a new bank borrowing from a bank in
the PRC with a principal amount of RMB6,000,000, and repaid
RMB3,000,000 for daily operation purpose in Hangzhou, the PRC in
2015. The borrowing is unsecured, interest rate 4.02% and repayable
in 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a bank loan with the
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB2,436,000 (2014:
RMB2,878,000) which is unsecured, interest bearing at Base Rate in
the PRC plus 15% and repayable in equal monthly installments for 7
years to June 2021.

The loans from a director are denominated in HK$, other

borrowings are denominated in the functional currency of

the respective group entity.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

FAFF A= —AULEE

24. 1B & (&)

Biat -

@@

(ii)

E=ERANBEREHE

R}a

B =

ﬂﬂ$}

ZEBERIERE—RESRAE AL (BN AY
ANBBEEAFENZRR) ZERKIBER -
RZTE—RE+=-A=+—R8 EEMEA()
#9785 %31,346,000( £ A% A R #526,653,000
) (ZE—MF:4#%%32,236,000 ' &
HER ARM26,066,0007T) 2 B IRF &
325 R ESASBELHEE BEE %
=—F+ 8 (i) #5%2,143,000 (HHEER
AR #1,822,0000T) (Z T —ME: B
2,117,000 * ©IHHER AR ¥1,712,000T) 2 B
RILEB325%EE - EFAFE HEER
BEEZT=—F+=A: k(i) #7%%3,765,000
(HMBERARY3,201,0000T) (ZZT—U4E:
#78%4,242,000 ' 49 ﬁ#EA/\Eﬁ% ,430,000

TIZERABEBEBREREE: (v KB
5,083,000 (#V#H % M A R#4,322,0007T) (=
T — 04 4786 %5,021,000, HHEHENARE
4,060,000) 2 ERREER REREZ
—FER=FREE: (v 995%2,117,00004
HERARY1,800,0000) (ZZ—H4F: 4975
#2,226,000 ' X3 HZE R A K %1,800,0007T) &
W REB3SEMEBREREE-

%

HE-T—AF+-_A=+—BILFEHH"
AEBMOMESEATEEBRRERNBE
4,133,000 RSN AR%3,514,0007T) * 1RF
535@?%: BAR=ZFRNEE: Ri)NES
A S A 512,178,000 (WHERAR
Mussz,ooom CRERR RERR=FRNE
%o

AEBR-_Z-AFERPEN —REBITRN
ZLWﬁ%EZ%)\R¢§6,ooo,0007za@%ﬁsaﬁﬁfﬂ§$x
R 1838 AR 3,000,000 ARHERMN A

BEB -ZERAEER FXAEL02%ENRZ
T—RFHEHE-

R-ZE—HF+_A=+—HB KAEEREAL
B ARE2,436,000 (ZT—NF: AR
2,878,0007T) 2 RITE R AMEEM - xR BE%E
FIEMS%EE  BEREFRN(EEZT=Z—F
NA)EBRSESHEE

HiERAZEE
MITREE AT {E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

25.

26.

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

SHARE CAPITAL DL N
Number of shares Amount
RAEE nE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-nf “T-mE —E-51% —Z-MF
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FER FR AREFT ANREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBOETZEER
Authorised: B
At 1 January and 31 December W—A—BRTZA=1+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 January n—A—H 840,730 839,730 8,360 8,352
Exercise of share options T BRI 23,700 1,000 191 8
At 31 December R+ZA=+-8 864,430 840,730 8,551 8,360

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

26. LRGP BEBRN KRS

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry
of the said options. As a result, a new share option
scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry
of the Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are
same with the Scheme.

ARRzREEEBERETS

ARrlz EERERE (TZAEDR=F
Z-FN\A-tTLtERK TE2ENREK
BEEEERRE YR _FT——F
NAZt+EBE®R REZTE ARQF
ExgnmAERER (BRARA K
MBARIZES) REBEE URBAR
ARt - s FT B RAE B R AHI+
FHEEEM &t 8GR 2B EMT
EREEEEAR REZEREZAR
EBRREZFEAEARZREMA  RIEZ
FHEIZ R BEBAETERETRZ
B BEEFMBREDH B K=
E-—F A=+ N\HCEHENFTE
(T#hatE))  REH 8 E MR S AN A R - #
A8l T BRREZAEMER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM”), the
New Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the
Company was authorised to grant share options under
the New Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the SGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
granted share options to 25 eligible participants (the
“Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 21,400,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company pursuant to the New Scheme subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees.

At 31 December 2015, the number of ordinary shares in
respect of which options had been granted on 9 October
2007 (“2007 Option”), 19 January 2010 (“2010 January
Option™), 16 August 2010 (“2010 August Option”), 28
February 2011 (“2011 February Option”), 4 June 2013
("2013 June Option”) and 15 May 2015 (“2015 May
Option”) and remained outstanding is 136,730,000 (2014:
142,960,000), representing 15.8% of the total ordinary
shares of the Company (2014: 17% of the total ordinary
shares) in issue at the end of the reporting period.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

26. MR BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELEHBRESTS (F)

BERRR-_ZT——F A=+ /\B£1T
ZAREIREEIARE ([REFIARE])
BB ERARE FAE o BRERSE
EEH SARRERERENTERDY
AR TR & Z 5 181,184,000/ ¥
D EARRRRBRESR ARG AHE B#1T
BRA#I10% ©

HE-_Z—AFt+_A=Z+—BLLFEH
- ARRIREBEHFTEI M5B EEE2HE
AT (TERBEADRLDERE  UREAQ
RIA% A A & #£21,400,0003% F A% HE{E0.01
B2 E B WAEFERABENES

R-ZFE—RAF+-A=+—H ®BER
—EZEF+ANB([ZZEZEFER
) ZE-EF-—ATHABE([ZF
—ZTF—AEREl] ) ZE—ZFN\A
SE(ZE—ZSFNABEKRE]) =
E——F A=+ NB([ZE—%F=
REREl ) —Z2—=FA=+HMA
(ZZ—=FAEk#E] ) R=F—1
FAA+RERB (I ZE—RFRAERE])
BEBMRTE2ERE PR LR
A% 8 B £&136,730,00015 ( —ZF — U4 :
142,960,00015 ) 1A R BRI EHARE
BTEBERES2158% (T —WMF:
HEBRABZ17% ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AERNRRS (&)

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:

Options granted to directors and employees on 9
October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon
6-months of the date of grant

e Additional 10% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date
of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of
grant

Options granted to director on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 9 January 2012

ARTAZRESHEBRESS (£)

RIEZETEI R 8 ML EEFSARE
B SRV HR AT HE /& - R IR ax At IR 0 BB X
BMETHOROEE TEBREARRFE
FITREI10% © fm I B IE AR B BR 5E
ATt REM—FRAREMALERE
Al FREMBREREITEM S BEITHA
TERINEMOERE  TEEBAREEWN
FEOEETROMI% -

BRI RIRIAT R ITRE:
R-BELtF+ANA —F—FF—F
TABR=-F-—FFENNATANARTFEE
RIESHERE

o S%ZBREANKEBHNMEAR
A TITE

o BIMO%HERBANK L AR —E
FRATITE

o ZEIN5%MBREARK L B HMMIE
FRATITE

o HMT50%HMERBEANKRLAH=A
FRAUTITE

R-E——F_F -+ ARFEEZHE
B
o S50%ZERENEE R FITE

o FRINSO%HIBAREAN_T——F—
RANVA & ER F1TE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+-HA=1—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 12 January 2012

Options granted to director and employees on 24
June 2013

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 23 June 2014

Options granted to director and employees on 15
May 2015

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 14 May 2016

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

26. MR BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELEHBRESTS ()

R-E——F A=+ HBFEEZE
B

o 50%ZMBREANE L A BRI T1T
:3

o FRINSO%HIBHREAN_-—T——F—
A+t -—BxE&RATITE

R-IE—=ZFNA-1+HARTFEEZERE
EZERE

o 50%ZMBREANE L A HEA F1T
:3

o FEINS0%HBAEAN —FT—MER
AZ+T=Hx&EERA TITE

R-FE-LZFLATEZARTEFERES
ZBRE

o 50%ZMBREANE L A BRI T1T
:3

o  FEIS0%HMBREAN _-_T—RFhH
At HE A& T1TE

R BRI 8 T ER AT E

@ EE B TR R AR B
B2 T - (BRAD B B R B A
RE% %A 2 TR E: RiAR TR
2 EiET 2 BREE -

PR Z BT S W EEN 2 KE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

26. LR BERNRRS (£)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZRELEEBRESSE (£)

(Cont’d)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Options granted to directors and employees on

9 October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010

mhEZA

R-FELtF+ANA =F
THAAR=FE-—FFNNAI+AARTFEF

D\

ARl FEBEmT

—FF5—4

RIESHERE

Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
Rl B

BREER BREAH BES T e ZARE
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
“TTLEERE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007%08.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0368/ T 0.2253% 7T
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
T-TE-RERE  19.01.2010 19.01.2010%18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200/ 7T 0.1330% 7
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
—2-ZE)\RER 16.08.2010 16.08.2010£15.08.2013 16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840/ 1T 05289/ 1T

Option granted to directors and employees on 28

R-E——F_F -+ ARFEERE

February 2011 BEZERE
Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

RELAH
BREER it B BES TEH EE ZARE
2011 February Option
“Z-—F-REkiE
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
BRTES 28.02.2011 TER 28.02.2011%09.01.2021 07357 03308%7T
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
RYES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011209.01.2012 10.01.2012£09.01.2021 0.7387 0341757
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
HTEE 28.02.2011 TER 28.02.2011£12.01.2021 0.714% T 0.3366/5 T
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
KTES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011212.01.2012 13.01.2012%12.01.2021 0.714% T 03417587t
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=41—HIFFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Option granted to directors and employees on

26. MR BERNRRS (&)

R-CE—=ZFNA-1+HARTFEEZERE

FRRZRELEHBRESTS ()

24 June 2013 BZBRE
Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

Rl B
BREER BREAH BES id: fifeE ZRARE
2013 June Option
“T-ZF RAERE
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTE% 24.06.2013 TEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 012287 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
BTES 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.112258 7t 0052237t
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
RTES 24.06.2013 TEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 0128 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTEE 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 012287 0.0522/8 7T

Option granted to directors and employees on

R-E-LZFTATLZARTEERES

15 May 2015 ZERE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REE A H
BREER REAH BEH (i fEE ZARE
2015 May Option
“E-RERABERE
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2648
KTE% 15.05.2015 THEA 15.05.2015% 14.05.2025 0.43% 7T 0.26487% 7T
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2694
KTE% 15.05.2015 15.05.2015%14.05.2016 15.05.2016 14.05.2025 04357 0.26947 1T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2243
ETEE 15.05.2015 A 15.05.2015%14.05.2025 043%7T 022435 7T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2372
KTES 15.05.2015 15.05.2015%14.05.2016 15.05.2016% 14.05.2025 0.43% 7T 0.2372% Tt
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

26. LRGP BERNRS (&)

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZREEEBRESS (£)
(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share
options during 2015:

TREBR -2 —AEZBRES

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
1.1.2015 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2015
R-B-1%F R-Z-1%F
-B-H t=A=t-H
Option type BREER i RATIE REARH RERTHE RERKHK REARZH i RATIE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors KTE%F

2010 January Option —Z-ZFE-AiEkE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option T AEKRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —E-=EXARRE 4,040 - (4,000) - - 40
2015 May Option “T-RERAERE - 1,900 - - - 1,900
70,840 1,900 (4,000) - - 68,740

Exercisable ARZE—RE
at the end of 2015 FRTE 67,790

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option “ETLERERE 18,850 - - (1,090) - 17,760
2010 January Option —E-TE-ABRE 11,170 - (3,250) (1,340) - 6,580
2010 August Option T-TE\RBRE 2,980 - - - - 2,980
2011 February Option “T——F-AEKRE 13,270 - - (300) = 12,970
2013 June Option —E-=EXABRE 25,850 S (16,450) (1,200) S 8,200
2015 May Option “Z-RERARKRE - 19,500 - - - 19,500
72,120 19,500 (19,700) (3,930 - 67,990

Exercisable AR=E—RE

at the end of 2015 FETE

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price immediately before the
date of exercise is HK$0.268 (2014: HK$0.240).

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

— P04 :0.240/87T) ©

58,240

BRFERITEZBREMNS  BRTER
HiRT 2 i FIHRER0268E T (- F
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(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share

options during 2014:

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

26. LRODAERNRRS (&

FRRZRELEHBRESTS ()

TREBR T —1E 2 R 2

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
1.1.2014 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2014
H=g-mE N=g-mE
—B-H t=A=t-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERXHK REARZH i RATIE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors KTES

2010 January Option —Z-SE-ARKRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option “T——F-AEKRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —E-CZEXARKRE 4,040 = = = = 4,040
70,840 - - - - 70,840

Exercisable AR-Z—ME
at the end of 2014 FEETE 70,840

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option ZETLERERIE 18,850 = S = S 18,850
2010 January Option —Z-ZFE-AEKE 11,780 - - (610) - 11,170
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\ABKRE 3,290 - - (310) - 2,980
2011 February Option P ABERE 13,760 - - (490) = 13,270
2013 June Option “E-ZERARKRE 26,850 - (1,000) - = 25,850
74,530 = (1,000) (1,410) = 72,120

Exercisable ARZZ-—ME

at the end of 2014 FETE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26.
(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Options were priced using binomial option pricing model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

UROABERNRRS (£)

xt

FRRZREEHEBRESSS (&)

>

BREDA—EABREETEEAEE-
BAZBAELT:

2013 June option
—E-ZFERNABRE

Granted to Granted to
directors employees
RT&EF BTEE
Share price &% & HK$0.10187C  HK$0.1018 7T
Exercise price I(EE HK$0.11228 70  HK$0.1122/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 B R 1@ 64.099% 64.099%
Expected dividend yield EHAR B & 0.000% 0.000%
Risk-free interest rate e a S 2.104% 2.104%
2015 May option

—E-hFRAERE
Granted to Granted to
directors employees
RTES RT¥ES
Share price iz B HK$0.4338 5T HK$0.4338 7T
Exercise price 7B E HK$0.433& 7T HK$0.4358 7T
Expected volatility T8 BR 18 72.035% 72.035%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0.000% 0.000%
Risk-free interest rate =R g =R 1.819% 1.819%

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return of the share prices of the Company and
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.

In relation to the share options granted by the Company,
the Group recognised the total expense of approximately
RMB3,302,000 in cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses as well as administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB592,000) according
to the function of the grantees.

I TR U AR 2 7 R RS B R R B e
THRA TR B BREO S EEA
SELRSCET RS EE £

ERAARARERTHERE A& BRRE
E_T—AF+-_A=+t—HILEFEEHE
B DEMEEEBRARERERR
LR H B ARE3,302,0000T (ZF—
F: AR®592,0000T) ' & BB EAR A
ZEREEEETE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. HEAE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMERR AEEREFHENEHE I
commitments for future minimum lease payments under WA CEHERERRRERS
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented BBz mT:

premises which fall due as follows:

2015 2014
—E-FF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T ABET T
Within one year —F RN 649 754
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FERERF
(BREERME) 3 5
652 759
Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of one to two HELBNTEERB—ZEZE_F(=2F
years (2014: one to three years). —HE:—FE=5F) -
28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BEARS
Apart from details of the balances with related parties BT EHMBMERMER 22 23K248
disclosed in notes 22, 23 and 24 to the consolidated B AR AREERFRNETUT
financial statements, the Group entered into the following FELR5:
related party transactions during the year:
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEEAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members of key AEEEERTEEBEEZKEZME W
management during the year were as follows: ™
2015 2014
—g-5F  -—T-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETF T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERN 2,604 2,560
Retirement scheme contributions benefits iR K48 F 5T 2 4 2% 241 245
Equity-settled share-based payment MEEREERTZ
expenses i I v 1,776 317
4,621 3,122
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

28.

29.

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFFf

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

28. BERR S (&)

Rental expenses HeExX

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FT AREFT

Rentals paid to Sing Lee Pharmaceutical 2 #7F %8 2238 O

Import & Export Co., Limited BRABHPRAE
for lease of office premises BAHAE 535 500

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments
of approximately RMB256,000 (2014: RMB249,000) for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the next year in respect of office
premises with a related company, Sing Lee Pharmaceutical
Import & Export Co., Limited, which Mr. Hung Yung Lai
has 50% equity interest with joint control.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

29.

R-_E—RAF+-_A=+—H B®TFE
M—HBEEAR [FANBEEHOARA
Al (BRI EERZERBRE B O%ERS
WHEEHRESE) HERAEWE K
SEETZ AR BB 2 & LA - B EE
HARRKEHESTR EEREOARE
256,000 ( = F — P44 : A R%249,000
TT) e

RARER G E

AEERAARBEENAEEREEEER
HlERTEEE - ZAt B2 EERARE
LEEDARR THEXANESERE-
AEERBESAEMEZHRBERT
BERAZ5% A% LR 7R30,0008 7T M
BB ZHREL RIFHER -

AR B E 2 (R B A B A
RSB MR E R AR B 2R A -
AR EARFIRAZBEE S LARE
HERFOMEARARS 2 ES AREY
2 REEAERBEZ R
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COMPANY

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

N
BN

S

o

JiE]

B

/N

2]

30. AR BB AR 2518

AR E IR Z FIEE T 10

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2015 and 2014 Principal activities
ERARL/ R/ BRTRARKRE/ FRREEL B20156 R
NRER EEER EMERZFE SRILA WUEREFDL TEEH
2015 2014 Direct Indirect
ZE-1f —Z-QNE HE B
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) Co., British Virgin slands 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
Ltd. (“Singlee BVI")’ HBRLHE US$1 each REER
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) Co., 715l R EE
Ltd. (T#A#BYI |)! 1€ 2R
Singlee Software? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
2 # US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
4,325,500% T related hardware products and
HMER provision of software-related
technical services
RRANHERER HERRE
HER URBESRHEZR
il
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% = 100% Development and sales of
R HE US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
6,714,000% 7T related hardware products and
#HER provision of software-related
technical services
RAMBFERER HERBE
HER URRHEFEZR
e Bk
Singlee Zhuhai* PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
Mg Gk US$1,250,000 Tasx
1,250,000% T
HMER

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 30. AR BB AR 2518 (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2015 and 2014 Principal activities
ERAL/ HE/ BEARMRERE/ NG B20156 R
RAER EEEX AMER2FHE SRILA WUEREFDL TEXE
2015 2014 Direct Indirect
ZE-1f —Z-QNF HE Gk
Beijing Singlee? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
LA Gk RMB1,000,000 TEex
AR 1,000,0007
HMER
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
b R Gk RIMB100,000,000 Taex
AR #100,000,0007
HMER
L Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British ! FRBVIRTERBR ZHESTMA N EREE
Virgin Islands. NS
? Singlee Software and Beijing Singlee are wholly foreign owned 2 FMEM RAL RN BB INE R -
enterprises.
3 Singlee Technology, and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign equity joint 3 FRMERFRBRAEFBRIKIOPINEGES
ventures established in the PRC. =VNGIE
4 Singlee Zhuhai have been de-registered on 15 April 2015. 4 FRHKEER T —RAFMAT+HABEHE-
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BEFHERIL MEEMRMKMEBARETE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. A EE 5o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXEE ke EAMEE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES S

() ExEkER

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings from a director and bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, share premium,
accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

AEBERAARETRAAEEZ
ERTNSEEE TEBEICAR
R B8 7 A 84 8 M TS A 5 R B K B
o mAFERR  ARE EER
ST

AEBzERARBEREKXRBEST 2
ERARBEAARGRA (EFE
FREAS - It s (B - RETEIE R
&) o

EEEY¥F - ARANBERARE-ES
Bz —&D BEEEEEERKAN
REERRIENAREZRER KEHE
BIRBEEZEZEZ EBIMNRE
BITHBARBITHESLELRE
BHERFEHEEBEARE -

(b) Categories of financial instruments (b) EWMITAEEHR

2015 2014
—E-IF —F-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT AR For

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including Bk ERFIE(BE

bank balances and cash) RITEBRRIRE) 44,364 30,523
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 690 697
45,054 31,220

Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B S AR 59,803 52,418

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

. EXEREEREREEBNREK

R (#)

() =REREERNREE

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HEFF#H

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’'s financial instruments include loan
receivable, trade and other receivables, held
for trading investments, bank balances and
cash, amounts due to directors, amount due
to a shareholder, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and
purchases and certain receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to directors, amount due to a shareholder
and borrowings of the Group are denominated
in US$ and HKS$, currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

AEBZEMTABRERKER &
WESEEMER HIEEERE
RITEBRNMES BNESSHE BN
BREE BNESDREMBERAR
fEE - ZEEMIAZHFBEREME
PRE-EZEERTAMABZEAR
BREMSER (FERR E&ER
REMERRR ) EERR MRS
BB BERMNABEZZFRRZ
HEHNTX -EBREEERERZ
FZRBRABERAILERRBER TR
BEa@EziE-

% 3

() E¥ERE

AEBAINEHERRKRE BX
SHZE TRKFOR - RITHER
kRE BNEZREMER-
ENESE BANRERERIER
EEUAXTRAET (ZEERL
FHEBEEEERZYEEE )G
B EAREEBEEREINERR -
A B B A AT INE O I
Re-Rim BEEESERINER
o W6 R E B E AR IMNE
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+=-A=1+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAER ke EAMEEE N REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERESEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont'd) mE R ()
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () EEE (&)
The carrying amount of the foreign currency RIERRUINEHENEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary EREBEENREBENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2015 2014
“E-1f It 2SS
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE g8f BE af
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFT ARETR AREFL ANEETT
Us$ e 763 651 765 614
HK$ BT 1,179 37,957 334 33,770
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥R & ¢ (%£8) R ER AT Annual Report 2015 —E— R F§§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAREE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(1)

Annual Report 2015 —E— R F$§

Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2014: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HK$. The 5% (2014: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on
the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number
indicates an increase (decrease) in the post-tax
profit where RMB strengthens against US$ and

(i)

w5 ()

E¥mEbE (%)

TERFANWAEEHAREBHET
MAETTERESH5% (ZF — I
F 5% )MBRRE %5% (=&
—PO%F : 5% ) EERRENFTHEI
[EERMNEIE A e EBRFERA N
BRELE - RmEBRAR K
EEEINERBOGRES T
ERREHREKEEREGER
INEESTE R 5% EE) (ZF — 1Y
F 5% )2 MEZRAE-E(B)
BERBARBHEETRABTHE
BYBRBERNEM D) - A
RERETRABTEES% (ZF
— U5 5% ) B BR A 18 0m T iE

HK$. For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of RMB AR RAERFE -
against US$ and HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.
2015 2014
—E—EEF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Change in the post-tax profit — BR7%: 14 % M &1L
If RMB strengthens MAREHETHE
against US$ (10) (12)
If RMB strengthens MARM B THE
against HK$ 1,839 1,672
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+=-A=1+—HIFFZF

3. EXEREREREAREREBNHRIK
R (#)

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERESEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE ()

(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () EEg (&)
This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to D EZHRRERSHARART
outstanding foreign currency receivables, bank HEEWINE RITHEBRAS
balances and cash, trade and other payables, ENESREMBER ENES
amounts due to directors, amount due to a FRIE - BT AR SR SRIE R R T B
shareholder and borrowings in US$ or HK$ at TG B i 2 B B
end of the reporting period.

(i) Interest rate risk management (i) FE @ &

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate unsecured loan from
a director (see note 24 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances (see note 20 for details) and variable
rate borrowings (see note 24 for details). The
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

AEEAREEBEARESEE
(BRI IER2HME24) B2
RAENRER -

ARENEREWLRTER
(BB RMIRE20) R AT RF IR
(B LM E24) HRLRENE
M ERE RSB E Y
REATIEAR

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HFF#H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A\ H
A

B 7% R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Annual Report 2015 —ZE—HEFF#H

Interest rate risk management (Cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rate
for non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2014: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
in interest rate represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2014
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variable were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would decrease/increase by RMB194,000
(2014: post-tax profit would decrease/increase by
RMB165,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the
insignificant floating rate bank balances for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

EXRRBREERERE
R (#)

B MR

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

w5 ()

(1)

FIEEBEERE (&)

T

MR GREE D

BRESWDIRBIEITETAER
ﬁ%%ﬁ EREFZZB AR E R
MmEE @ DA TR NS HARE
BRBZERTESRIANESF
BB T FIE LAk T R50E

o

B (—F— M4 S0KY) HEE
T B L 5 TR A A LA 0
GIEE

WMFIE EFHTRESOER (ZF
—PO4F  S0EE) c MATEEEE
WETE AEBBE-T—1
FH+_A=Z+—BLEFEZH
BRMEERD IEINARE
194,0007C (=T — W4 : &
S R D #8 0 A R #165,000
) FEHRASEZEMEBE
BFERBRFTE -

BE_ZT—AFE_FT-—OF
TZA=+-RLEFEE AEE
W EL T B IRTT R ERBRE
DT -
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31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unlisted funds. The
sensitivity analyses have been determined on the
exposure to the market price risks at the end of
reporting period. If the prices of the investments
in unlisted funds had been 5% higher or
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2015 would increase or decrease
by approximately RMB35,000 (2014: post-tax
profit would increase or decrease by RMB35,000)
respectively as a result of the changes in fair
value on financial assets classified as held-for-
trading.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+=-A=1+—HIFFZF

3. BEXEREREREAREEBNHRIK
K (%)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

w5 ()
(i) BB 18 2 B2

AEBRFLTHESRE MAE
RAEERR AEEBSHRE
HAMNTHERRRETHXRE
S - MEEIFLTESKRED
BEEASXTHRS% BHE-Z
—AFE+_A=+—HALFEH
RerMEeRFEEERER
AEZE MG MR AR
35,0000 (=T — O F : B {8 m
I ok 4 =k 42 0 A R 35,000
TT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAREE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk EERE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's maximum R-_E—FF+_A=+—8 K&
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss BRZGEFREBITRBERRE
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation B BEIMAE 2 &N EERRIR
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying BREaMBRARMAREREER
amount of the respective recognised financial assets, TRMEEZKREE:

which is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The directors continuously evaluate the EEeRETHREWERZHF A2
creditworthiness and financial strength of the FEEMMBREN UEEEEEFH
counterparty of the loan receivable as well as SECEEEREBEN BREFRZIE
considering potential business development of the HEERBETRT - RERZSHE
counterparty. The term of the loan receivable is FHRERKETRMS KH5EFRLA
stipulated in a loan agreement. The loan receivable NETRE G LR

due from the counterparty is a private entity which
engaged in research and development of software.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that REBMETBBOREREDEE &R
sales of products are made and services are provided BRERTEAEREGELHENES
to customers with an appropriate credit history and MAKBE TGN EEPNEELER
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial MBENARZEREBEPMNBAER
strength of its customers as well as considering Sk -BF —RERNK1208 5
prior dealing history with the customers. Generally, 180RMEEH MAKE —RITEK
customers are granted with credit periods from 120 EFRHER BHEEKREZEIRD
- 180 days and the Group usually does not require BREC DT E A MTRE17 o

collaterals from its customers. An ageing analysis of
trade receivables is set out in note 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+-HA=4+—HIFFZE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

3. EXEREREREAREREBNHRIK
R (#)

() SREAREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont’d) EERE (&)
EIEEE IR R A B - | B R
F'EJ CBPUBENREEFERSF
trade receivables based on historical payment records, ¥ B U Bl YR BR SGE T (E R

the length of the overdue period, the financial ﬁéﬁfpﬂ?ﬁ FUtmE 'Zli AIEER
RAEEZFEERBRE AKREE-

Management makes periodic individual assessment as
well as collective assessment on the recoverability of

strength of the customers and whether there are any
trade disputes with them. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

ﬂxﬁlféi;?&féﬁz&—ﬂggﬁqﬂﬂ

JRERA8% (ZFE—UF 1 46% )
REREAAEE RN
BFERE: &t CEWE S HRIETNS R
REEF AR ERS 2 EB 5
o

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 48%
(2014: 46%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group's top five largest customers in ZEH&ZT
relation to the provision of software-related technical
support services business segment.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited EEE"K*B“LT%EEETD%EﬂE’JIﬁ

because the majority of the counterparties are state-
owned banks and local commercial banks with good
reputation.

Liquidity risk

As set out in note 2, the Group is currently
dependent upon the continuing financial support
from the shareholder with significant influence over
the Company and additional external funding to
meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. With the support from
the shareholder with significant influence over the
Company and the additional external funding, the
management of the Company consider that the
Group's liquidity risk has been reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAMRERE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mEBELEE (&)
TRAARSE ZFITEMESREE
BRTERINBBEZFB - ZRIDER
TRBERTEESZRAIHERENR
ZBHZ RBRASTRER ZxE
FIFBEREZRESRE

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

o

based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk table FFE e & &
Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
miE RERY AERRE

TR = —-FREE —FHULE RELHE REE
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000
% AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT

2015 —E-IF
Trade and other payables BRESREMER = 10,290 = 10,290 10,290
Amounts due to directors EREFHIE - 902 - 902 902
Amount due to a shareholder  JE R R B - " - 1 1
Loan from a director BEEER 2.66% 7,201 41,836 49,037 43,164
Bank borrowing RITEE 5.81% 3,684 2,338 6,022 5,436
22,088 44,174 66,262 59,803

2014 —E-mE
Trade and other payables ERESREMER - 11,686 - 11,686 11,686
Amounts due to directors EREFHIE - 775 = 775 775
Amount due to a shareholder — JE{JRRE B - 11 = 11 11
Loan from a director BEFEN 3.25% 10,047 35,484 45,531 37,068
Bank borrowing RITEHE 7.53% 645 2,949 3,594 2,878
23,164 38,433 61,597 52,418
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—F—AF+=-A=1+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAER ke EAMEEE N REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERESEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments AY¥ -]
The determination of fair value of investments in EEREEEELMESKEANE
unlisted fund held for trading is disclosed in note 19. B EFIE - A EE 198 58 -

Fair value measurements recognised in the DB E R R & MR HRE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIBERVBERAEZEBE
instruments that are measured at fair value on a FEemMIAZONM HE—ERE
recurring basis, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on FEBRBHEERAAEAHERD
the degree to which the fair values is observable. BE-

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those o ZF—ERAAEFETIREIERE
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active MiZE A HRIEESXBENWE
market for identical assets or liabilities. (REEAE) -

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those s F_EHRAnEBEHENEBEE
derived from inputs other than quoted prices REBBEZHABLIEBIERNE—
included within Level 1 that are observable for BRAZHRE EA]EEM (B
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) &) B ( B ERSIER) Al
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). BIR(F_EBMA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-F—AF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAREE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments RAAE(F)

(Cont’d)

Fair value measurements recognised in the DR EFFE BRREG & BB R %

consolidated statement of financial position (Cont’d) (&)

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those e EBE-EHMARBHEDEHBEE
derived from valuation techniques that include B E 2 WA B I KK E
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based Remin8E (BERE @A
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). ‘) -

2015
“E-1F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-Ef E_ER FZER &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL  ARETr  AREFTn  AREFx

Financial assets at FVTPL FRERBLAABNEREE

Held for trading investments BIEEERE - 690 - 690
2014
—E-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER EEMR F-ER it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ANERTT  AEETT  ARETx  ARETx

Financial assets at FVTPL ERERBAABNEREE

Held for trading investments BEEERE - 697 = 697
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the AFEEE—EBHARE_EH 2 HEILE
current year. = E

Annual Report 2015 —E— R &£ SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #i &4+ (@) RHAERA A 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE

32. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 32. A A B EERHE

THE COMPANY

2015 2014
—E-FRF —ZT 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr ARETFor
Property, plant and equipment TENE BB Mk - 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt /BB A R SRR 28,290 26,567
Current assets mENEE 1,999 1,180
Current liabilities mEBE (3.819) (3,220)
Non-current liabilities FmBEE (34,078) (30,493)
(7,608) (5,965)
Share capital (Note 25) BRAS (Hfit25) 8,551 8,360
Reserves (Note) i (Hrat) (16,159) (14,325)
(7,608) (5,965)
Note: it -
Share
Share options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B %E [ e E-y A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKFT AREFT ARKETFT
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—mE—A—§H 155,143 30,102 (195,864) (10,619)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEEBEEREZA
for the year M 4858 - - (4,298) (4,298)
Exercise of share options NEFZITE 2 AR 42 (42) = =
Lapse of share options KEFRBRZ B E - (328) 328 =
Recognition of equity-settled share-based & # B 12 45 E LA B D B
payments EAR - 592 - 592
At 31 December 2014 RIZE—MFE
+=—A=+—H 155,185 30,324 (199,834) (14,325)
Loss and total comprehensive expense REEEEREZERAX A0
for the year - - (7,339) (7,339)
Exercise of share options REFITEZERE 3,423 (1,220) = 2,203
Lapse of share options RNEFRBZ BIRIE - (453) 453 =
Recognition of equity-settled share-based MHRKRELEE RN A
payments ERAR - 3,302 - 3,302
At 31 December 2015 RZTE—hHF
+-—A=+—H 158,608 31,953 (206,720) (16,159)
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